MINUTES
WARRICK COUNTY DRAINAGE BOARD

REGULAR SESSION

JULY 12, 2010
Old Historic Courthouse

107 W. Locust St. Suite 303

Boonville, Indiana 47601

812-897-6170

The Warrick County Drainage Board met in regular session with President Tim Mosbey presiding over the meeting, also present were Don Williams, Secretary; Phillip H. Baxter, Surveyor; Steve Sherwood, Chief Deputy; Bobby Howard, Director of Storm Water; David K. Zengler, Attorney and Recording Secretary Cheryl D. Embry. Commissioner Noffsinger was absent.

Present in the audience were Keith Messmer, Dan Hostetler, Jay Kivett, Alan R. Bosma, Carol Schnell, Earl Schnell, Steve Camp, Robert Sears and Jennifer Kauffman.

The meeting started with the members and audience reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

President Tim Mosbey: I now call the July 12, 2010 Warrick County Drainage Board Meeting/Storm Water Board Meeting to order, the first item on the agenda is the approval of minutes from the June 28, 2010 meeting.

Commissioner Williams: Mr. President I would like to make a motion to approve those minutes.

Commissioner Mosbey: I’ll second. All in favor say aye. Motion was carried 2-0.

SPRENGLE DITCH-STAHL ROAD:

Commissioner Mosbey: Next item discussion on placing pipe in Sprengle Ditch for Stahl Road, is there anyone here to address that issue?

Jay Kivett: Yes, Jay Kivett, Project manager for Warrick County Redevelopment Commission.

Commissioner Mosbey: Any comments from the Surveyor?

Phil Baxter:  This is for the extension of Stahl Road and everything is fine.

Commissioner Mosbey: You’ve given him the recommended size and all?

Phil: Mr. Morley did that.

Commissioner Williams: How big are those culverts? This is a severe drainage area.

James Morley, Jr:  They vary in size, there is an east box culvert and a west box culvert. The East box culvert which runs on Sprengle Ditch which is the legal drain is 20 foot wide and 4 feet tall it is the same size as the box culvert that comes underneath State Road 66 there and then the….

Commissioner Williams: I will remind you that was not big enough.

Mr. Morley:  The west ditch there currently is an 8 X 4 box culvert underneath what was the portion of Grimm Road that was already extended and then that is extended part it goes from an 8 X 4 to a 10 X 4 and then ultimately to a 12 X 4.

Commissioner Mosbey: Any other questions or concerns?

Commissioner Williams: I have none, I would move to approve the request.

Commissioner Mosbey: I’ll second. Motion approved 2-0.

JULIANNE ESTATES:

Commissioner Mosbey: The next item on the agenda is the Julianne Estates, Mr. Bosma requesting permission to discuss drainage change. Please state your name.

Alan Bosma:  Alan Bosma with Bosma Construction and I’m trying to get a drainage change on Joanna Circle we had a little water issue about 3 ½ years ago with a 100 year rain there and had an overflow over there and the people thought there was going to be a problem and with a 100 year rain you don’t have that you know. The water was over Coal Mine Road it was over the big ditch behind us there and in the 30 years that my father and I and my bother have owned that property between Julianne and Brooklyn Ridge we have never seen water that high before. So that one day for about probably a half hour it was probably up over a little bit you know over its normal run but it did not enter any body’s garage, house or anything like that just mostly the yards.

Commissioner Mosbey: Have you looked at this, any comments?

Bobby Howard: I have looked at it and I just want to say I did receive complaints from the residents living there in regards to they say this has happened a few times where there’s been water in the streets. When we were looking at getting the inspection done for the streets for maintenance we saw that there wasn’t an emergency swale there like the drainage plan originally stated. We do not know if at the time you have since corrected the problem there was water bypassing inlets and all running down to the lower end here to these two inlets and without that emergency overflow there they couldn’t take the water that was coming to them it would flood the street. Then the other situation is if that legal drain is backed up it will flood the street, the emergency overflow would only alleviate the first condition where there’s water bypassing the inlets to get to that point. It will not help any situation that is a back water condition.

Commissioner Mosbey:  I’m aware of that too. (mike not on said something about restrictions in creek?)

So what are you requesting to change just not to have to put the swale in?

Mr. Bosma: Yes, just basically to drop the swale and say it’s okay so we can get our streets accepted.

Commissioner Mosbey said something about recommendations.

Bobby: I’m not going to recommend that, that will have to come from…

Phil: Bobby is the one who brought it up to my attention for street drainage.

I went down and met with Alan one day last week and the swale is not there so if you say it’s all right……..but it’s on the plans now.

Commissioner Mosbey: So according to our plan he is supposed to have a swale in there?

Bobby Yes.

Commissioner Mosbey: So there is not swale and you are requesting not to have to put a swale in.

Mr. Bosma: What I did, I did put the swale in at one time when Jim was Surveyor and the gentleman on the right side if you’re looking at the homes had built up quite high on his house because he put a basement in there, well we got back to about the middle of his property from the back to the back and we ended up with about a 2 ½ to 3-inch ditch there and his wife come home at lunch time and had a fit called me about every name in the book and said she wasn’t going to allow that so I had Jim come down and look at it and he said the only problem we’ve had is that one rain that went over Coalmine Road. He said he really didn’t see any problem with it and at this point and time I’m not going to beat you up on it go ahead and fill it back in. We have now worked on the other outlets and got them turned around where they are supposed to take the water coming off both sides and everything was pretty well working properly.

Commissioner Williams: Can you show me where those outlets are, we have such a small map.

Bobby: It’s the highlighted section there the darker bold.

The street inlets are right there in front of that and then there are some here.

Commissioner Williams: There’s a pipe going back through there, Mr. Bosma?

Mr. Bosma: Yes for a fifty year storm.

Bobby: His design engineer designed an emergency swale here and like I said I don’t know when this happened if it was a result of the backwater in the creek or if it was…at the time that water was bypassing these drains now if these drains get plugged up for some reason then it all drains down to here then again we won’t have an emergency swale for water to get away.

Commissioner Williams: Then where will the water go?

Bobby: It holds in the street until those drains are…..

Mr. Bosma: But the thing of it is…if people don’t let anything trash or anything get in there so hopefully it won’t happen again.

Commissioner Mosbey: But my question is if the original plan called for a swale, he’s asking us to forgive that but we can’t do that can we?

Bobby: You could I mean the design engineer designed it for a reason and he’s not here today to tell us that but because he apparently just left.

Mr. Bosma: I mean it works without that swale lets put it that way.

Bobby: I mean if you want time to look it over I think you have another meeting that you could go to in 2 weeks because you’re not on the Commissioner’s agenda for you’re street plans I see so that is going to go in July 26th.

Mr. Bosma: I was supposed to have this done by today.

Bobby: You could get them both done….you could get it done right before meeting if it’s going to……..before the 4’0clock meeting on the 26th if you want time to…..

Commissioner Williams: Did he have to submit a modified drainage plan to Area Plan?

Bobby: No if he’s amending something in this case since he’s just asking it to be deleted I would assume….did he send a letter or anything Phil to put with the drainage plan because they will need to approve something.

Phil: Who?

Bobby: Mr. Bosma

Phil: No

Commissioner Williams: Are those lots along there occupied, how do those residents feel about your plan?

Commissioner Mosbey: That’s where I’m at you know we have to look at both sides and I would feel a lot more comfortable if we had two weeks to give me time to go over there and look at the original plan.

Mr. Bosma: That’s fine I can meet you over there and show you what we’ve got, as long as it’s fine by him.

Bobby: The Board will have to….I can’t recommend to the Commissioners to approve the street plans for maintenance……

Commissioner Mosbey: Until this is done.

Bobby: Whether or not you agree that the swale needs to be done or removed.

Commissioner Mosbey: He’s got until the 26th to get that done. So we’re okay on the time line.

David Zengler:  You might consider I mean the design engineer was here I mean you might have at least some communication from him.

Commissioner Mosbey: That’s the other person I wanted to talk to in the next two weeks.

Commissioner Williams: And the water goes down…..how long if it does have an exceptional rain how long does it take the water of course that depends on the water…..

Mr. Bosma: Oh, you mean if it is that high?

Commissioner Williams: Since you want it to go in it’s overflow it’s going to build up in the streets and it’s going to go out to the storm drain through the pipe….

Mr. Bosma: Right, but the only problem we have like I say about 3½ years ago when we had that 100 year rain now it did go over Coal Mine Road…

Commissioner Williams: 6 inches in 5 hours or whatever it was.

Mr. Bosma: Oh no it was down within a half hour it doesn’t stick around long I mean since you guys cleaned it out on down past you know on Bell and Telephone in that area man it goes, you could canoe down it at that period in time.

Commissioner Mosbey: I farm on both sides of it and it definitely comes toward me now.

Commissioner Williams: Do you want this tabled Mr. President?

Commissioner Mosbey: I would appreciate that if it’s okay with you.

Commissioner Williams: I would move then that we table it for a period of two weeks until July the 26th.

Commissioner Mosbey: I will second that. All in favor of tabling say aye.

Motion was passed with 2 ayes.

Mr. Bosma: July what?

Commissioner Williams: We’ll be getting with you.

Commissioner Mosbey: July 26, 2010 at 2:30 and one of us or both will get with you separately between now and then.

Mr. Bosma: Then we’ll meet down there and go over it.

Commissioner Williams: Do you know the addresses of the two houses that it was supposed to go between?

Mr. Bosma: It goes between…no I don’t I’ll get those for you.

Phil: I can get them for you.

Commissioner Williams: It could be on your little map but it’s pretty small.

Commissioner Mosbey: Yeah, it’s a little bit hard to read.

Mr. Bosma: Well they want everything  small anymore, thank you.

The recording secretary interrupted the meeting to ask a question about the recording system.

DISCUSSION-SCHNELL VS MESSMER:

Commissioner Mosbey:  Next item on the agenda is discussion of the Schnell vs Messmer request for a public hearing. How do we want to start, this has been going on for quite a while.

David K. Zengler: Maybe I could start.

Commissioner Mosbey: I was just getting ready to ask you too, go ahead Mr. Attorney.

David Zengler: The place we are at now is that before the Drainage Board may proceed we need a report from either the County Surveyor or I guess his designee that there is an existing obstruction in a natural surface water course as it has been alleged in Mr. Schnell’s petition. If that is not reported then for all intents and purposes the petition is denied. But before it can be set for hearing that has to be done.

Commissioner Mosbey: Would you like to address that or would you want Mr. Sherwood to?

Phil: Mr. Sherwood

Commissioner Mosbey: Would you mind stepping to the podium?

Steve Sherwood: I think the Board’s in receipt of the report that I filed at the request of Mr. Baxter again my name is Steve Sherwood, Warrick County Chief Deputy Surveyor. Are there any questions in regard to the report?

Commissioner Mosbey: Well, as Mr. Zengler stated in your report you are telling us this is not a 100% blockage or stoppage both meaning the same thing?

Mr. Sherwood: Yes, it depends on definition and further review of IC36-9-24 or -27.4 and the continuing sections after 4.0 and 4.1 and thereof. Definition of Obstruction: Now for most storms the 15-inch pipe conveys the water that is there to me that’s not an obstruction however there probably are several larger storms a year where the pipe fills up and as described in the previous minutes regarding this case where water flows around to the North across the Messmer property and then joins Byron Court again in some fashion and flows continues to flow where water would flow. So to me we have some type of restriction of some magnitude not of an obstruction. Most storms as testified by both parties water will flow through the existing drainage network that is there. Once you reach a certain storm the pipe cannot handle it the water flows around to the north and I don’t believe the flow around to the north is being impeded at this point it still continues to go around the landscaping and across the Messmer property and flows somewhere back down Bryon Court in the Cul-de-sac area. And in my report I conveyed a definition of things for the county attorney or Drainage Board attorney for his consultation and as far as it being natural drainage, it became a subdivision in the late 80’s water still flows there it’s been manipulated not really what you would call a natural drainage ditch it has been enclosed its been well documented. I don’t know if any damage has been demonstrated to occur due to any of this restriction and those are the items that I have addressed.

Commissioner Mosbey: Do you have any questions, Mr. Williams

Commissioner Williams: I was out there Friday and I looked at both properties both the Schnell and Messmer property and I don’t think there is any doubt that it’s a natural water way going through the Schnell property and likewise I don’t think theres a natural…that it is a natural waterway going through the Messmer property. I think when that subdivision starts the natural ends there is no doubt that the water is somewhat restricted going through that pipe on a heavy heavy rain but I don’t see it as a issue of major of blockage which stopped altogether that’s never the case and I believe there is some restriction until that water raises maybe 10 inches maybe which may or may not bring that ditch out of its bank but I do not see this as an obstruction or a major restriction. I mean that is where I’m at I understand both sides of it, Mr. Schnell’s property is much higher than the Messmer property and if there is one thing that I’ve learned in 10 years water does flow downhill. I don’t know of any damage I haven’t heard or read and I went through over the weekend I went through everything that Mr. Schnell gave us 2 weeks ago a second time and I understand both sides of the issue and I really think that Mr. Messmer may have the biggest problem of the two and it looks to me like that landscaping is kind of a self defense about to prevent the water from going toward his door. So it naturally is going to fill up and go towards so my opinion is and I’ll make a motion based on the fact that there is no blockage, there is a certain amount I think of restrictions but not a excessive amount. I didn’t see any damage anywhere from the water so I am going to make a motion that the petition be denied.

Mr. Schnell: Before you make that I would like to say something too here.

Commissioner Mosbey: Oh, we’re….all he did was make a motion its just a motion on the floor and I will go ahead and second that motion now I will open it up for discussion, you are welcome to address the Board.

Mr. Schnell: What did you say Mr. Sherwood that removing that stuff that would improve the….would promote better drainage of the petitioners land if that in heavy rain removing that stuff would that promote a better drainage of our land if that during heavy rain if that landscaping material was gone would it promote better drainage of the petitions land which is us in heavy rain would it do that?

Mr. Sherwood: Would it be free flowing?

Mr. Schnell: Now I’m asking you a question would it promote better drainage of our land during a heavy rain if that landscaping material is not there?

Mr. Sherwood: In heavy rainfall?

Mr. Schnell: Yes

Mr. Sherwood: Yeah

Mr. Schnell: If you look at section 14…..

David Zengler: May I interrupt for just a second here.

Mr. Schnell: That’s word for word.

Mr. Zengler: But that’s not the issue for today, the issue for today is that the County Surveyor or someone in his office must find an existing obstruction in a drain or natural surface water course in the location alleged in the petition that doesn’t…so that’s what we’ve been talking about it’s an obstruction.

Mr. Schnell: That’s right an obstruction means…doesn’t mean an obstruction doesn’t mean a complete blockage it means it slows the water it impedes the flow. I gave you guys all this I wrote a definition it means it simply slows the water up and this is right out of the thing that is what we’re talking about this blockage.

Commissioner Mosbey: Well, I think the issue and I was there this morning I did trespass on everybody’s property and you know whether it was right or wrong years ago whenever it was that the 15-inch pipe was installed by whoever was the engineer or the surveyor at that time, that was the size pipe that was recommended to be put in we all agree with that.

Mr. Schnell: No, no no did you look at any of the minutes?

Commissioner Mosbey: But the 15-inch pipe is what was recommended to be put in at that time and that is what was put in.

Mr. Schnell: The subdivision was set for a 27-inch pipe 1994 Andy Easley…..

Commissioner Mosbey: But later on…..

Mr. Schnell: 1994 that’s when this all…this pipe went in 1994 Andy Easley recommended two times the Board   ?    him two times 24-inch.

Mr. Schnell: I’m just….lets go back and back up this is a natural surface water course there are three things that are blocking that drain that natural surface water course the natural trees that’s in here natural trees I could have removed the pipe itself is a blockage to the thing the pipe is and the landscaping is all three are blockages to that natural surface water course. Those are all three blockages so you…to tell me that the pipe is a drain is ridiculous I mean all three are blockages of that water course it’s a natural water course he says it’s a man made but it’s not a man made because the Indiana law says the definition which includes__?___? Culverts defines a man made drain as an area which must not have been established under or have not been made subject to any drain statute. This has been made subject to 27.4 this..the whole thing is a natural surface water course it is all three of those are blockages the trees the pipe and the landscaping are blockages.

Commissioner Mosbey: He recommended it wasn’t followed through on. I wasn’t in office at the time I’m just…I read what your saying yes.

Mr. Schnell: We’re kind of off the subject here because you’re talking about the road right of way this is……

Commissioner Mosbey: No, what I was trying to refer to was the 15-inch pipe that starts at the property line your wife and I was there.

Mr. Schnell: Yes

Commissioner Mosbey: It is an open ditch through your property the water goes through the 15-inch pipe there is nothing obstructing the water from going into that 15-inch pipe. There’s nothing obstructing..just hear me out there is nothing obstructing the water from going into the 15-inch pipe its an open ditch and the hole is open on the end of the 15-inch pipe, we all agree with that.

Mr. Schnell: Okay

Commissioner Mosbey: The landscape and all that you know I hate laws common sense and laws they don’t go hand in hand some time from looking at it I see you’re argument I also read the laws and what they’re telling us which we have to follow the laws because we are the government or in this case we are the laws is addressing the obstruction of the water flow.

Mr. Schnell: Right but what…do you think that area from the beginning of that pipe to the road right of way what do you…that’s natural surface water course right? Is that not right?

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m looking for the help from these guys I guess that’s what……

Mr. Schnell: He says its man made

Commissioner Mosbey:  There are so many different terms here that I’ve learned on where water flows I don’t know what you call it anymore.

Mr. Schnell: Right, but let me answer his man made thing if that is what has you guys sidetracked on man made.

Commissioner Mosbey: I think what Mr. Sherwood is stating if I’m not and correct me if I’m wrong I don’t want to put words in your mouth but he is stating that the landscaping and all that it is impeding but it’s not blocking.

Mr. Schnell: It…that’s the law the law says it cannot impede has nothing with blocking…blocking is not the same thing.

Mr. Zengler: That is not what it says…

Mr. Schnell: Show me in here, please?

 36-9-27.4-4 Section 4  3-4 people were stating this number all at the same time and were reading”Prevents or significantly impedes the flow of water through a drain.

Commissioner Mosbey: Through a drain through the drain. Through the drain those three words.

Mr. Schnell Right

Commissioner Mosbey: There is nothing impeding or obstructing the water from going through the drain.

Mr. Schnell: Okay you know what the drain is……

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m not here to argue with you I’m just….

Commissioner Mosbey:  When you say the trees you mean the trees on Mr. Messmers property?

Mr. Schnell: Yes, the trees on Mr. Messmers….if you look at the…..

Commissioner Mosbey: The trees have been there…….

Mr. Schnell: They are natural obstructions. We haven’t asked them to remove them but it is in our right to have them removed if we pay for them. If you read the law we can have the trees removed.

Commissioner Mosbey: On his property?

Mr. Schnell: On his property absolutely but you guys don’t even understand the law I mean…

Commissioner Mosbey: Well, we have a….I think he’s supposed to be a legal counsel and we listen to him he is our attorney.

Mr. Schnell: I can tell you this we don’t want to I mean it sounds like you’re going to rule against us but I can tell you this you guys rule against us on this and we’re going to take this to court we’ll be forced to take this to court and I guarantee I’ll take this to court I don’t want to look like I’m up here a poor guy don’t have any money don’t have an attorney but I guarantee you we make more money then most of the residents of Byron Court so we can afford that attorney so we’re going to take it to court and we will have every news person that we can get out there. We have everything documented we will tell them our entire interesting story it’s documented we’ll have it on TV I guarantee you I mean this is totally ridiculous what you guys are doing to us and what you’ve put us through. This is a natural surface water course that has three blockages in it and we are asking for one to be removed and you guys are refusing. You are obligated by law to remove it you are obligated it says so right in the law right here in the law. You are obligated to remove that three blockages we are asking for one of them to be removed….

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell, I understand that is your interpretation of the law we have to listen to Mr. Zengler to interpret the law.

Mr. Schnell: Well, I can assure you it will in court it will be in court.

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m not here to argue with you we are just trying to do what our….what we have to do.

Mr. Schnell: I mean we will answer you’re questions if you think that’s what the…..but right here’s the law here’s what the law says there are three blockages in it and……

Mr. Zengler: I have been reading you the law I have been reading it straight out of the statutes.

Mr. Schnell: It says in there we can have natural unintentional or intentional blockages, natural are the trees or if a big rock would fall in there that is all natural blockages we can have those removed this thing is a natural surface water course no matter what you guys say it is all three of them are blockages all three that is the law and you guys have to uphold the law. It says that all through there.

Commissioner Mosbey: I totally agree with that statement we are here trying to uphold the law the way our counsel is interpreting the law you are interpreting it one way and he is interpreting it another evidently.

Mr. Schnell: How can you interpret…

Commissioner Mosbey: That is the argument here.

Mr. Schnell: How can you interpret the law that the trees and the pipe is not a restriction in the natural surface water course, if I was to put a….like the example I gave you, we wanted to put a pipe in our yard right we were told to have an engineer why…just listen to me….why did you guys tell us to put a pipe in there and get an engineer to size that because we couldn’t block the water upstream. We couldn’t block their…so what if I put a 4-inch and I put a 10-foot dam over on the other side you guys wouldn’t do nothing to me because I have a drain it’s 4-inches, it’s 4-inches diameter it is a drain that’s baloney.

Commissioner Mosbey: The 15-inch pipe was put in from what I’ve read and correct me if I’m wrong here at….that was the recommended size that they put in at that time is that correct? Was that before…when you were….

Mr. Sherwood: It was most likely the15-inch was the driveway pipe assigned Mr. Messmer’s driveway.

Commissioner Mosbey: And they just extended it on up?

Mr. Sherwood: Which my report says when you people will start extending pipes on their own accord…..

Mr. Schnell: If you realize there were no permits for Messmer’s for driveway culvert so it hasn’t been sized the thing was set for a 27-inch then it was set for a 24-inch it was approved as a open ditch subdivision and the County only put the pipe in the road right of way. Mr. Messmer put his in himself and that is totally different, that is a natural surface water course with a restriction and your attorney told us that we couldn’t ask for the pipe to be removed or we would be…could be billed for all the expenses plus like pain and suffering or something like that to try that but we didn’t care about that pipe we just want the natural waterflow through there and not have our property flooded it is our basic right to protect our property our basic right from flooding, ponding of water and to prevent the reduction in value and reduction of property usefulness. I mean this is our basic rights and you guys aren’t even…. you act like it’s nothing.

Mr. Sherwood: I believe it’s the same rights that everybody down stream in Byron Court has.

Mr. Schnell: No, no sir You are wrong they have the right to put their own size   proper size culvert in there to prevent their flooding they have to take whatever water that is presented to me from my East side they have to take that water they can’t block it.

Mr. Sherwood: And all of their frontages along Byron Court are no longer natural they were man made when the subdivision road was created.

Mr. Schnell: Did you listen to what I said man made what he has is a road right of way, Bobby Howard controls the road right of way man made only can be man made if that….it wasn’t made under a statute or was not subject to a statute. I would like you Mr. Sherwood to tell me in this audience you know who do you know why are you siding with them because in your report which is flawed to every maximum every statement almost is flawed who do you know that you are backing this up who are you representing.

Mr. Sherwood: I believe the only flaw was misnaming Lockwood Lane and not naming it Woodstower Drive.

Mr. Schnell: Oh let me get my paper here I’ll quote a whole bunch if you want I mean I sent everyone of these people they know what I’m talking about I mean who cares about FBI agent that wasn’t even a professional report. Good grief milk jug and a pipe.

Mr. Sherwood: Those were the facts.

Mr. Schnell: I don’t care it’s heresay that come out of you’re…..you don’t have any documentation in that thing. I tell you I sent it to them they’ve got it. They’ve got it because I went off my documentation and corrected your errors.

Mr. Sherwood: I’ve got it too.

Mr. Schnell: All I know is it is our right to protect our property you guys have the obligation to remove that blockage that is the law it’s the law.

Mr. Mosbey: I totally understand what you are trying to say and from what we can read as two members of this Board when we refer to blockage…it’s my turn Mr. Schnell please when we all refer to blockage I listened to you can you listen to me.

Mr. Schnell: I’m listening yes.

Commissioner Mosbey: When we all refer to blockage we are all referring to blockage of the water flow, do you agree with that statement?

Mr. Schnell: Blockage of the water flow of course it’s water flow what else would there be?

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m just making sure we understand each other. 

Mr. Schnell: Yes, it blockage of the water flow.

Commissioner Mosbey: We’re referring to blockage of the water flow the water flow is not blocked all through your property through that open ditch and it’s not blocked into that 15-inch pipe, do you agree with that statement? The water flows freely into that 15-inch pipe.

Mr. Schnell: Into it as long as the water doesn’t get too high, yes.

Commissioner Mosbey: There is nothing obstructing the water from getting into the 15-inch pipe?

Mr. Schnell: Well, yes my ditch is an open ditch.

 Commissioner Mosbey: Your ditch is an open ditch and right there is the pipe and the water goes straight freely into it?

Mr. Schnell: Right

Commissioner Mosbey: Now when I read what they have provided us the obstruction we’re talking about obstructing the water flow, it says obstructing the water flow there is nothing obstructing the water flow…here me out..once the water a big rain once that 15-inch pipe fills up then it has to naturally go somewhere it’s now presently going to the North and going on down Bryon Court, do you agree with that?

Mr. Schnell: Well, it goes both sides, yes you’ve seen the pictures.

Commissioner Mosbey: But it goes to the North more than it goes to the South.

Mr. Schnell: Yes and then that is why you have people…..

Commissioner Mosbey: I mean if it went to the South you probably wouldn’t have build your building where you built it because you would be taking a chance of it getting water in it. If the water would have went to the south.

Mr. Schnell: Right but if you notice you’ll probably have some people on the North side of Byron Court here why are they here?

Commissioner Mosbey: I have…… It’s a public meeting I didn’t ask them to be here.

Mr. Schnell: I know it’s because the flood water is going onto Byron Court and crossing the street these people on the North side of Byron Court even on the corner shouldn’t be getting any of this water it should be going on the South side it should never cross the road why is it crossing the road ? Why are you allowing them to use Byron Court as a natural water way?

Commissioner Mosbey: I think we read somewhere where they all at that time…I don’t have all the paper work here but the minutes stated something where they all kind of agreed and have swimming parties in big flooding rains or something the neighbors do.

Mr. Schnell: All right, I have to go back if you’re finished I’d like to go back to this area again, once again it is a natural surface water course anything in this……

Commissioner Mosbey: And we’re bring told it’s not since it became a subdivision.

Mr. Schnell: Well, that’s not the law.

Commissioner Mosbey: And that is something I guess we’ll have to argue in court that is all I can tell you that is my only answer. I mean we have to go by what our staff tells us, our attorney.

Mr. Schnell: Okay who determined it’s not a natural surface water course?

Your attorney? Tell me why you say it’s not?

Mr. Zengler: I didn’t determine that I’m just telling you…..

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Sherwood, I apologize.

Mr. Schnell: Well, okay Mr. Sherwood I go back…..

Mr. Zengler: Until one of these two people say that there is an obstruction in a natural water course in your petition they can’t proceed any farther do you agree with that?

Mr. Schnell: You are absolutely right 100% 100% okay so

Commissioner Mosbey: That is our point here is whether we’re going to have a public hearing.

Mr. Schnell: Okay then I need to go back to Mr. Sherwood then and get the definition as by Indiana Law, Indiana definition of a man made ditch or drain is what he’s…is what you’re going by is????subdivision he is saying it is man made which in Indiana the definition of man made ditch which also includes buried culverts I got this right out of…off the internet defines a man made drain as an area which must not have been established or have been made subject to any drainage statute. This has been made to a statute so there is no way and it further defines a man made drainage ditch as a ditch that’s made on a person’s property to drain like gutters or to drain other stuff. It is not in a natural drainage way you can’t do that the classification what he has what he’s talking about this thing is a natural water course enclosure it’s a failed drainage improvement is what he’s got. It’s a drain improvement activity within or adjacent to a natural stream primarily intended to improve the water flow capacity, drainage and control erosion. That is what you’ve got there it can no way be anything but a natural water course then in that respect this thing you’ve got three restrictions the pipe itself, the trees and the landscaping materials all I’m asking for is for him to be a good neighbor and remove the landscaping material. You guys have….

Commissioner Mosbey: We understand that.

Mr. Schnell: You guys have the obligation to do that.

Commissioner Mosbey: Our attorney is telling us….

Mr. Schnell: Not the attorney.

Commissioner Mosbey: We’re here to determine whether this deems a public hearing or not at this moment.

Mr. Schnell: Right and I think it does.

Commissioner Mosbey: And our attorney is saying we’ve all…you agreed when I asked you a minute ago whether is there an obstruction of the water flow?

Mr. Schnell: You said of the pipe. There is an obstruction of the water flow in the natural surface water course, there is.

Commissioner Mosbey: But not into the pipe and that is where…..

Mr. Schnell: The pipe is a restriction itself.

Commissioner Mosbey: That would have to be determined in court, I’m not go….I’m not one because I…the history between Warrick County and whoever put them in I’m not even going to go back that far but I mean have you defined any damage to your property? Has there been any damage to your property?

Mr. Schnell: Well….the damage to our property is that I cannot plant anything back there I’d lose my value to my property from being flooded which wasn’t there until he put the landscaping material there also we have you know I can’t plant nothing I can’t build nothing I can’t put nothing there even if I put a culvert in I can’t because I’m going to get flooded. My damage is my loss of use.

Commissioner Mosbey: I think you were told at the last meeting you can put a pipe in your ditch we all agreed with that.

Mr. Schnell: But it won’t do any good with the dam there it will come right back on us unless you’re telling me I can put a 10-foot dam there, I put a pipe and put a 10-foot dam and say don’t come back I can do that if you’re going to give me permission to do that I can use my property.

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m not telling you what to do.

Mr. Schnell: I know but what I’m telling you we could put a pipe there and we’re going to put a pipe you know I don’t know what size pipe to put cause we didn’t want to cause any damage but you know we’re left just hanging here I mean you guys have the obligation to clear that natural water surface course as the petition requires according to law.

Commissioner Mosbey: And there is a motion on the floor to deny the request for the petition based upon the Surveyor’s report from Mr. Sherwood and that is where we’re at right now in this meeting.

Mr. Schnell: And what in the report says that it is not a natural surface water course?

Commissioner Mosbey: I think Mr. Sherwood has addressed that.

Mr. Schnell: Tell me again because I guess I’m pretty stupid.

Mr. Sherwood: It’s addressed in the report.

Mr. Schnell: Tell me again why?

Mr. Sherwood: Further stated as Indiana Code 36-9-24.4-4 subsection 2 obstruction defined as prevents or significantly impedes the flow of water through the drain.

Mr. Schnell: Have you seen any of the pictures that I presented to the Board?

Mr. Sherwood Yes, I have.

Mr. Schnell: You have and you can say it doesn’t significantly impede the flow of water?

Mr. Sherwood: That is my interpretation, yes.

Mr. Schnell: Where are the pictures, where are your pictures?

Commissioner Mosbey: We’ve got them we’ve seen the pictures.

Mr. Schnell: I know but he needs to see them again. The thing is a restriction right here you’ve got a water flow and a lake on our side……

Mr. Sherwood: As I have stated in my opening comments there may be several storms during the year where the pipe is full and the water flows around to the north, the drain still acts.

Mr. Schnell: It’s a 100 year flood that you’re……. it’s a natural surface water course this is a natural surface water course You….my gosh what can we say….I mean how much more simple is it It is a natural surface water course you guys have the obligation and if you guys rule against us you did us wrong. I mean entirely wrong you have got to do what is right here, because it is a natural surface water course there are three blockages I explained it over and over and we have a right to have all of them removed. I mean the trees, the pipe and the landscaping materials, we have that right.

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell, I understand what you are saying I farm for a living I’ve got a 116 acre farm on the north side of Chandler and in a big rain event probably 45 to 50 acres of it is completely submerged under water because Warrick County won’t clean out Pigeon Creek and let the water get to the creeks. They are impeding the natural water flow.

Mr. Schnell: No

Commissioner Mosbey: Yes they are by not cleaning the creek out and my whole farm gets under water I’ve lost crops to it but that’s just the way it is.

Mr. Schnell: You probably need to sue them. Well, what if your neighbor went downstream of your ditch, what if your neighbor went downstream and decided he didn’t want to get all that flood water on him what if he wanted to put up some landscaping material and rocks and stuff…but but

Commissioner Mosbey: I understand but our issue here is the motion on the floor is to deny the request for the public hearing and what we have to do as a Board as a Storm…or Drainage Board here is to follow the recommendation from the Surveyor’s report which in this case is Mr. Sherwood and our attorney is telling us that we have to act upon what they have said. Now I would like to let the other party if they would like to speak…..

Mr. Schnell: I would like to hear Phil Baxter which reported two-three meetings ago stating that there was a blockage. I’d like to hear from him, you stated that there was a blockage.

Phil Baxter: That is the reason I was asked to ask the Engineer to come to…..

Mr. Schnell: Did you or did you not state that there was a…..

Phil: I don’t know what word I used.

Mr. Schnell: Do you want the minutes I’ll get the minutes here for you I mean they should be in the minutes.

Phil: I don’t need any minutes.

Mr. Schnell: Did you not say there was a blockage?

Commissioner Mosbey: If he did I don’t recollect….

Mr. Schnell: If you guys rule against us you’ve done us wrong.

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell, I appreciate what you’re saying trust me.

Mr. Schnell: But you don’t care do you?

Commissioner Mosbey: Well, I did until that comment.

Mrs. Schnell: I am Carol Schnell from 10088 Lockwood Lane I just want to clarify a couple of points I might jump around a little bit but does an obstruction does not mean it’s 100 % blockage for one goes to the north in these heavy rain falls yes, after it backs up 35 feet on our north bank and drowns out anything that is there it goes to the north. Then after it raises a good 20-inches or so to get over this dam then ???? and as far as that 15-inch pipe flowing freely into it yes when it’s not a heavy rain when it’s a heavy rain it does not flow freely into that. It backs up behind that dam backs up 35-feet on our back bank in our yard that we can’t use and that is not right there is no two ways you can look at that and say that’s right. I’ve had members sitting right here before me say it’s a dam. I’ve had members sitting right here before me say it needs to come out the landscaping is what I’m referring to, the rock the landscaping. People right here have said it needs to come out so I don’t know what is going on right here but it’s not good. I was told by Bobby Howard when this first came up over that pipe there needs to be a swale to me a swale is a swale it’s not 18-24 feet of landscaping materials and rock. Finally our property is not a retention pond for their heavy rain that subdivision has been messed up from way back whenever somebody else was in office and they’re putting that all off on us they did not buy property from us they do not pay us rent to use our property as a retention pond for the flood water for that street, it is our property and I can sit here and look at each one of you right now we are not going to stand for it, it is not going to happen. We really came to you officials because we wanted to do what’s right, we wanted to handle it we trust you our taxes pay you money the law says you have to vote for us to get that landscaping from blocking that water and nobody would want that. I’m sure Mr. Messmer wouldn’t want Mr. Sears below him to build a big old dam and keep it back on him and then put a little pipe in there and say oh its okay it’s not right. If you cannot see that you have to be blind I’m sorry. It’s not right, we’re not going….we can’t stand for that we really came to you for help and Mr. Baxter said in the last meeting that it was a blockage, you said it it’s in the minutes and you’re disrespecting him because he…somebody is I don’t know who.

Phil: Did I say it was a blockage after an extra heavy rain?

Mrs. Schnell: You used a word obstruction how is it written? I have it in the minutes.

Phil: Whatever I said if there’s an extra heavy rain.

Mrs. Schnell: Well last year I can tell you we had 8 between Mother’s Day which is in May before we came here in July.

Phil: How many have you had this year?

Mrs. Schnell: We’ve had several.

Phil: This year?  (someone not on microphone said something not audible)

Mrs. Schnell: It doesn’t matter what year, it doesn’t matter how many and what times it’s happening and it’s not going to be allowed, it’s not going to be allowed to happen. I don’t know why we had to hire an engineer to get appropriate pipe not to back it up somewhere and you’re telling us people downstream can do it to us. That that’s just not right.

Commissioner Mosbey: We understand.

Mrs. Schnell: I don’t know if you do but I mean this is a joke his report was a joke I laughed when I read that, the FBI agent did this the FBI agent did that how do I know it had a milk jug in it and he said all those…somebody said all those culverts were there in the 80’s the 90’s we’ve got the exact documentation of when people were hired and sized those pipes. What was approved and what was not and it wasn’t a 15-inch it was a 24 and a 27. So why have those people hired, why have those reports if you’re not even going to use it, why do we have a thing saying we need a certain size. We paid eight hundred and something dollars to an engineer to size our pipe so we don’t hurt anybody because we want to do what’s right. I have never in my life lived by somebody that you have to sit here it upsets me tremendously to come in here against a neighbor that wants to do us badly for his own personal benefit. I mean I want to live peacefully next door to my neighbors you know I just don’t get it there are no two ways you can look at that and say in a Christian way that that’s right. The way we are being treated by this Board and by Mr. Messmer there are complaints also through Bobby Howard in Thornbrook and other people complaining about water somewhere down…I don’t know if it’s in Woodstower and Thornsbrood or where but there is a water issue there, there is a water issue and it was evidently caused by this pipe this 15-inch pipe down Byron Court and this dam and nobody wants to listen. I feel like bringing….he’s making it worse by having a dam he’s putting it to the north on the people on the north side of Byron Court. He’s making it worse, he just keeps putting stuff and putting stuff it’s like if you have a half a glass of tea here and just keep throwing rocks in it throwing rocks in it its going to flood and its going to go more. Also the water backs up on us the 35-feet up and once the dam breaks phewsss there she goes and it’s making it worse for everybody down Byron Court in my opinion instead of flowing away as it goes he’s letting it build up and bust wide open that is why they get so much water. Something has to be done one way or another. We don’t want to make this Board look bad and and….but I mean you have to follow the law.

Commissioner Mosbey: At this moment this Board is dealing with the issue of whether we need to hold a public hearing or not and we are…there is a motion on the floor to deny the request for the public hearing that’s what we are discussing at this moment.

Mrs. Schnell: I understand I want my comments in the legal minutes for this meeting I wanted my comments in there in defense of some of the things that this Mr. Sherwood is saying. It’s just asinine I don’t know, any questions for me? You said to me this morning that landscaping needs to come out.

Commissioner Mosbey: I said if I lived there it would be nice if it came out, yes I..Mr. Messmer…..

Mrs. Schnell: You said it needs to come out and now you’re sitting up here saying well we may just can the thing.

Commissioner Mosbey: We are dealing with the one issue I just said whether we need to hold a public hearing or not based on the laws the facts and the laws there is a motion on the floor to deny the public hearing. That is all we’re dealing with right now is the public hearing issue Okay?

Mrs. Schnell: And where does it go from there may I ask?

(in the audience Mr. Schnell stated that they don’t want to do anything)

Mrs. Schnell: We have dealt with this since last year.

Commissioner Mosbey: Would the other party like to approach the Board, I need to give fair time to both sides here. State your name please.

Les Shively: My name is Les Shively representing the Messmers just briefly this…as you know this started last year this Board took a lot of time last year to hear Mr. & Mrs. Schnells concerns they continued voicing their concerns and this Board despite the time they gave last year on this particular matter allowed them a year later to file the petition. As your attorney has pointed out this is a statutory remedy and it’s like a new statute if you want use the statue to address the concern you have to follow the statute and your attorney has outlined how that is done and you have followed those procedures with your attorney’s guidance. You engaged Mr. Sherwood as the statute provides to provide the report and the report in it’s as my old law professor used to say knocks it out cold as a mackerel. It shows that it is not a natural water course and there is no obstruction and the law says if that’s what his report says it stops. The process stops now they have remedies if they want to take judicial review so be it but unfortunately under the statute once your report has come back from the Surveyor’s Office that process stops. You know the Messmer’s have not done anything malicious they are the ones that have been drawn into these proceedings they were drawn in last year they are drawn in here again today and they were drawn in here a month ago. They simply ask that once you allow this petition to proceed and proceed according to statute we ask that Mr…..I think already has been placed in record that Mr. Sherwoods report of June 18th been place in record?

David Zengler: In the minutes.

Mr. Shively: We understand that there is a motion and a second on the floor we simply ask that you take a vote on that motion. Thank you.

Commissioner Mosbey: Is there any other comments from anyone else?

Mr. & Mrs. Schnell stated that they have a right to rebuttal.

Mr. Shively stated to let the record reflect that several people in that subdivision…..(this was not on the microphone and someone in the audience was talking at the same time so all that he stated was inaudible)

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m asking for citizens that want to step forward right now presently, if you want to we’re allowing time to address the podium if you want to. It’s a free country you don’t have to. Here is another gentleman stepping forward. Just state your name and address please.

Robert Sears: Robert Sears, 10155 Byron Court I live on the South side of the road just downstream from the Messmers. I can assure you that our property…. that water that…the best thing that has done with that landscaping is not to impede the water but it does help to direct it out onto the street. Our house is still the house that floods it still flows into our drive way it still flows down into our drive way by our garage door it has helped the situation of where the water flows not stopping the water and I can assure you and there are other neighbors that live on the North side it does not flood the neighbors yards on the north side. It is a South side issue that continues to flow down that pathway. I live in the property that the FBI agent has been discussed he was actually a Federal Marshall is my understanding when we bought the property from those folks and so we did not put the pipe in but we have inherited that drain that has that pipe and we live with it we do our best to keep the drain clean. But on a very heavy rain and it does happen a few times a year water will flow, it flows right over the Messmer’s yard into our front yard and continues down Byron Court.

Commissioner Mosbey: And you live on the North or South side?

Mr. Sears: I live on the South side the same side of the street as the Messmers just one house downstream. That’s I mean from just a factual standpoint it stays on that south side.

Commissioner Williams: Mr. Sears, you’re saying you are the lowest lot as far as you know?

Mr. Sears: Unfortunately I believe I am the lowest lot.

Commissioner Williams: May I ask you, do you suffer any personal property damage due to the water?

Mr. Sears: We have water that comes into our drive, we have water at times that will build up slightly on the garage door that’s the function of the way that unfortunately our drive way flows downhill from the street. We have not incurred any property damage from any of the events.

Commissioner Mosbey: Anyone else like to address the podium?

Mr. Schnell: Here’s an answer to Mr. Sears he says that it doesn’t impede it well that’s why he’s getting ?? help because it does impede it, it’s using our lot as a holding pond so you don’t get all the water as much and it’s directed out onto Byron Court to the North side to the North side…if you remember back in…if you don’t know I’ve got it in the minutes the people on the North side of the Byron Court and that’s why the attorney told him not to talk because he is on the North side they….

(Mr. Shively, Attorney stated that he did not say anything like that and for Mr. Schnell to not put words into his mouth.)

Commissioner Mosbey: Please we are here for….please your talking to us you’re not talking to the crowd okay.

Mr. Schnell: I apologize to him I’m just going to say that they complained and that guy I believe lives on the North side and what’s happened the water is being directed over there and runs down and floods their yards as well……..

Commissioner Mosbey: He has the right to approach the Board if he wants to evidently he doesn’t want to I don’t know what Mr. Shively said to him, I don’t care. We have an issue on the table right now, let’s address the issue that is on the table and that is your petition for a public hearing. We’re here to determine whether there is an obstruction of the water flow in the ditch that is the request that is stated in your public hearing request.

Mr. Schnell: Okay, I’m just saying…right, Mr. Sears just said that it has helped and I don’t know why I can’t talk about it when he was just asked if he was getting any flooding…but anyway he just said it has helped him. Why has it helped him? It’s helped him because it’s using our lot as a hold pond therefore that tells you one thing it is a restriction its impeding the water flow………

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell, I totally understand what you’re saying and our…my point is this and maybe I’m not good at expressing my interpretation here today of the law. But our job as a Drainage Board is to enforce the law as it stands from the report we received from Mr. Sherwood and from the guidance our attorney there is a motion on the floor to deny the request for the public hearing. Now that doesn’t say this is not a civil matter it’s just saying that there is nothing that we as a Warrick County Drainage Board can do because it’s not…there is not an obstruction of the water flow in the ditch in the drainage way.

Mr. Schnell: You want to know what I think it is……

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m just telling you what we have…..

Mr. Schnell: What you’re telling me is hogwash and it…..

Commissioner Mosbey: And you have your opinion that’s fine and you can get an attorney and do whatever you want I’m just stating I don’t like the law sometimes I’m not saying I agree with what we have to do here today.

Mr. Schnell: Your not interpretating the law though you’re not going by the law you’re disobeying the law…..this is a natural surface water course…..

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell, Mr. Schnell like  I told you before I’m a farmer not an attorney I am listening to what the professional engineer and the attorney is telling us that is all we’re doing.

Mr. Schnell: I think you need to throw his report out the door because it’s not…..

Commissioner Mosbey: Everybody has their opinion Mr. Schnell that’s fine. There is a motion on the floor and there is a second, all in favor say aye.

Commissioner Williams: Aye

Commissioner Mosbey: Aye

Mr. Schnell: Where is Mr. Noffsinger?

Commissioner Mosbey: He had a death in the family, it was reported to by e-mail last night was it we received it?

Commissioner Williams: This morning

Commissioner Mosbey: This morning I read the e-mail. That’s all I can ….you can go back and ask the County Administrator he told us to check our mail. I have no idea I’m just telling you the truth.

Mr. Schnell: I know but our next step ????attorney you will have news cameras, you will have everything because you guys have done us wrong and you guys…I don’t see how you can sit up there I don’t see how you or you can sit there.

Commissioner Mosbey: I don’t enjoy it

Mr. Schnell: You well you enjoy every bit of it because there is something wrong you can’t say that you’re a Christian you can’t say that you’re ok you can’t tell me you’re Christian and you believe what you just said you can’t. You guys did us wrong. I guarantee you we have to take it to the court it is wrong wrong wrong wrong. This guy is unbelievable.

Commissioner Mosbey: I understand You have your opinion You know how I feel.

Mrs. Schnell: You told me how you felt.

Commissioner Mosbey: That’s right common sense and the law don’t enter into stuff sometimes. We have to follow the law.

Mrs. Schnell: It’s like some preachers take the Bible and turn it all around and make you think crazy stuff. You need to take it word for word I work in a word profession and it’s medical and you can’t mess with those words and twist them around. You need to read  black and white.

Commissioner Mosbey: As I tried to state we are following the recommendation from our attorney and our engineer. That is what we’re doing. We’re following the law as interpreted by our attorney.

Mrs. Schnell: Ok but you’re not following the law, interpreted is your word.

Commissioner Mosbey: You interpret it one way they interpret it another.

Mr. Schnell: It’s not interpreted by him he’s saying theres no blockages right here is the man that they are listening to right here right here.

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell we have other business we have to conduct.

Mrs. Schnell: Can I just ask my question? Is it ok to divert a ditch or your culvert or whatever you have and use the street as a drainage way, is that ok? I didn’t think that was ok.

Mr. Schnell: Because it impedes the flow of water the answer should be no.

Mrs. Schnell: I mean is it ok to use the street doesn’t that break down the street?

Commissioner Mosbey: I’m looking to them for guidance.

Mrs. Schnell: I mean I think you need to use…that’ why you have ditches along highways and roads so you don’t put water in the ditch.

Commissioner Mosbey: And there are no ditches along that street I understand.

Mrs. Schnell: No, but that culvert should carry it and the landscaping shouldn’t block it further and divert it to the street.

Mr. Schnell: To see how professional Mr. Sherwood’s stuff is go look at the easement when he was in office the pipe is 115 feet out of the easement. Not one of you have ever said anything about that you should discredit anything he says. But the pipe under his jurisdiction as County Engineer is 115 feet out of the easement over on Lockwood Lane 115…..

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell that is another whole subject, I am not here to start a big hatred argument.

Mrs. Schnell: Let me talk to him about the street.

Commissioner Mosbey: We are here, go ahead Mrs. Schnell.

Mrs. Schnell: I still would like to know I understand like the County has funds and they dig out ditches, they just dug one out this year some time on Grimm Road you know and the purpose of the ditches are to keep the water off the roads is what I’m assuming and keep it flowing somewhere so I’m just curious why the Messmer’s are allowed to build this dam that Mr. Sears says diverts it enough to go down the road and keeps it off of him, why is it ok to let that drain down Byron Court as a waterway? Is that ok to use the road as a water way instead of a ditch or a culvert?

Commissioner Mosbey: I wish I could find in a law where it stated that it’s not ok we can’t find…Our stance is this is probably a civil matter what the County can do on this issue is basically what we have dealt with here today. We really can’t do much because it’s determined and stop me if I say something wrong, that from your property line on we are told it is no longer a natural water way because when the subdivision was built that’s when it ceased being a natural waterway, is that correct?
Mrs. Schnell: That’s not correct.

Commissioner Mosbey: I am going by what we were told and that is what is frustrating to me and to you it doesn’t make sense, I’m not saying it doesn’t make sense I’m just saying  that’s what we’re….it doesn’t make sense to me.

Mrs. Schnell: Well, what’s in the road right of way if you look at the plat that portion of the culvert is subdivision that is in the subdivision….
Commissioner Mosbey: I understand what you’re saying there are no ditches on that street and how can they use the street for flow of water.
Mrs. Schnell: Can they, I mean who is in charge of that who knows?

Commissioner Mosbey: That is a very good question I don’t know how it was designed if it was designed……Mr. Engineer.

Bobby Howard: I mean we can look at it but either way if there was no pipe in this ditch all that water in a heavy rain event that ditch wouldn’t hold it anyway and it would all go down on the street the same way. It would still be draining in the street.

Mrs. Schnell: So they really need a 36-inch pipe down through there sized like we have or at minimum a 24 or 27 like the engineer said back then.

( Bobby Howard was still talking but so was Mrs. Schnell and what Mr. Howard said was inaudible)

Mr. Schnell: What is this area if it’s not a natural surface water course and it’s in the subdivision what is it…..what’s it called?

Commissioner Mosbey: What’s it called, I don’t know.

Mr. Schnell: Well, here’s your man that made the determination what’s it called, sir?

Mr. Sherwood: Waters flow out at the lowest point the water will seek the lowest point and your 115 foot ditch is not in the lowest point you’re 115 foot easement why do you think water is draining where it drains today?

Mr. Schnell: Just tell me what this ditch is called? I’ll be at peace is you can ask him what this ditch is called?

Commissioner Mosbey: What ditch, what ditch are you referring to?

Mr. Schnell: The one from our property line to where it becomes a road right of way ditch.

Commissioner Mosbey: Through Messmer’s front yard?

Mr. Schnell: The entire Messmers front yard what is that called now, is that….

Mr. Sherwood: You have a 15-inch pipe and a free flowing water course.

Mrs. Schnell: Free flowing?

Both Mr. Howard and Mr. Sherwood stated it was surface water.

Mrs. Schnell: So we don’t worry about rain water.

Mr. Schnell: No no no no, free flowing I haven’t run across that where did that come from? This is a natural surface water course covered by Statute 27.4.

Mr. Sherwood: It drains therefore it flows.

Mr. Schnell: My ditch drains to.

Commissioner Mosbey: Mr. Schnell, we have addressed this you are welcome to come back to another meeting but we have other business we need to conduct here yet on our agenda today.

Mrs. Schnell: I just want to know if we can flow it into the road because if that’s the case we own the next property up, we know the people on up can we build a dam at the top of Grimm Road and just let the water sit in Grimm Road? Can we, we’d just be diverting it and let it stay back there if he can build a dam we can build a dam. I just didn’t know water was supposed to stay on the road that subdivision was not put together right.

(Mr. Schnell is still talking in the back ground but is inaudible)
I mean they don’t have the right size culverts just an open ditch only two culverts are to be in there but we’re okay with that but don’t put a dam in front of us, it’s not right it’s not right. I just can’t see how you people can sleep at night and come and say it’s a dam it needs to come out it’s a dam and this one here.

Commissioner Mosbey tries again to speak.

Mrs. Schnell: So who knows if the water can go in the road? Who can tell me that anybody? Bobby?
Commissioner Mosbey: I don’t even know what road you’re referring to.

Mrs. Schnell: Byron Court can you redirect water instead of having a ditch and a culvert can you just let the water come off your yard and in the road to that magnitude?

Bobby: There should be a swale of some sort.

Mrs. Schnell: yes, from day one you’ve told me that and they need a swale and they don’t they have 20 inches of landscaping.

Commissioner Mosbey: Well I think Mr. Sherwood stated the swale is going to the north now and that is the natural swale.

Mrs. Schnell: Do you know it has to raise 35-feet on our property back up before it goes around…

Commissioner Mosbey: I understand all that we really I’m not trying to cut you short we have other business we have to take care of before our next meeting.
Mrs. Schnell: Well, I hope you take care of it better than you have ours.

Commissioner Mosbey: I appreciate that Thank you. Our next item on the agenda is a fence request from Mr. Steve Kemp 10233 Nina Drive.

FENCE REQUEST: 10233 NINA DRIVE:

Commissioner Mosbey: Would you like to address this fence request? I apologize. (there is loud commotion in the room and with a slamming door.
Phil: Yes, I investigated this morning it is alright if he just holds the fence up 3 inches off the ground.

Mr. Kemp: That is what I was going to do 4 inches.

Commissioner Mosbey: 4 inches is even better.

Phil: He’s got good drainage in his back yard, it’s fine.

Commissioner Mosbey: Any questions, Mr. Williams?

Commissioner Williams: I have no problem with it. Move to approve.

Commissioner Mosbey: Second. Motion to approve 2-0.

Any other business on drainage board there are no claims.

DEPARTMENT OF STORM WATER

Bobby Howard: I have no business today.

Commissioner Mosbey: The only comment I have on Storm Water for the Board’s information. Mr. Howard and myself are on the Soli and Water Conservation districts July 20th meeting agenda as recommended from the IDEM lady, the Storm Water Department needs to start working more in conjunction with our local Soil and Water Board plus our Solid Waste Management Board and we’re going to go to their meeting and Bobby is going to try to work out some cooperative effort between the two bodies I guess. Just wanted to let you know that and hopefully help on salaries and stuff like that. Do I have a motion?
Commissioner Williams made a motion to adjourn second by Commissioner Mosbey. Motion passed 2-0.
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